AGREEMENT

Between

BOROUGH OF NEW PROVIDENCE

and

NEW PROVIDENCE P.B.A. LOCAL NUMBER 132

(Patrolmen)

January 1, 2003

through

December 31, 2006

Prepared by:

Donald B. Ross, Jr., Esq. Lindabury, McCormick & Estabrook 53 Cardinal Drive Westfield, New Jersey 07091 (908) 233-6800

Frederick T. Danser, III, Esq.
Appruzzese, McDermott, Mastro
& Murphy
25 Independence Boulevard
Liberty Corner, New Jersey 07938
(908) 580-1776

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODU	CTION.							1
ARTICLE	1:	RECOGNITION						2
ARTICLE	II:	MANAGEMENT RIGHTS.						3
ARTICLE	III:	GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE						4
ARTICLE	IV:	SALARIES						8
ARTICLE	V:	LONGEVITY						9
ARTICLE	VI:	WORK SCHEDULE, HOURS	S OF V	VORK	,			10
ARTICLE	VII:	SICK LEAVE						14
ARTICLE	VIII:	TERMINAL LEAVE						17
ARTICLE	IX:	DISCRIMINATION OR COE	RCION	١				18
ARTICLE	X:	SEPARABILITY AND SAVIN	IGS .					19
ARTICLE	XI:	OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT.						20
ARTICLE	XII:	PERSONAL LEAVE TIME .						21
ARTICLE	XIII:	INSURANCE						22
ARTICLE	XIV:	NO STRIKE PLEDGE .						24
ARTICLE	XV:	DISCIPLINARY ACTION .						25
ARTICLE	XVI:	RETENTION OF BENEFITS						26
ARTICLE	XVII:	POLICE EQUIPMENT .						27
ARTICLE	XVIII:	FULLY BARGAINED PROV	ISION	S				28
ARTICLE	XIX:	VACATIONS						29
ARTICLE	XX:	PROVISIONS FOR REPRESOF DUES FROM NON-MEN	SENT/ //BERS	ATION S OF T	I FEE	IN LIE	U	31
ARTICLE	XXI:	MARTIN LUTHER KING, JR						32
ARTICLE	XXII:	EDUCATIONAL ASSISTAN	CE .					33
ARTICLE	XXIII:	SENIORITY						34
ARTICLE	XXIV:							35

THIS AGREEMENT, made this day of March, 2004 between:

BOROUGH OF NEW PROVIDENCE, in the County of Union, a Municipal Corporation of the State of New Jersey, with offices at 360 Elkwood Avenue, New Providence, New Jersey, hereinafter referred to as "Borough" or "Employer", and:

NEW JERSEY STATE POLICEMAN'S BENEVOLENT ASSOCIATION, New Providence Local Number 132, hereinafter referred to as "P.B.A";

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the parties have carried on collective bargaining for the purpose of developing a contract covering wages and certain other conditions of employment;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and mutual agreements herein contained, the parties hereto agree with each other in respect to the employees of the Employer, recognized as being represented by the P.B.A as follows:

ARTICLE I: RECOGNITION

The employer hereby recognizes the aforementioned P.B.A. as the exclusive representative for all Patrolmen in its Police Department in New Providence, New Jersey, but excluding probationary employees, Sergeants, Lieutenants, Captains, the Deputy Chief and the Chief of Police and all other employees.

ARTICLE II: MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

- A. The Borough, except as modified by this Agreement, retains and reserves all powers, rights, authorities, duties and responsibilities conferred upon and vested in it by the Laws and Constitutions of the State of New Jersey and of the United States, including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the following rights:
 - To the executive management and administrative control of the Borough government and its properties and of the facilities and of the activities of its employees.
 - 2. To hire all employees and subject to the provisions of law, to determine their qualifications and conditions for continued employment or assignment and to promote and transfer employees.
 - To suspend, demote, discharge or take other disciplinary action for good and just cause, according to law.
- B. The exercise of the foregoing powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities of the Borough, the adoption of policies, rules, regulations and practices in furtherance thereof and the use of judgement and discretion in connection with the implementation thereof shall be limited only by the specific and express terms of this Agreement and then only to the extent such specific and express terms hereof are in conformance with the Constitutions and Laws of New Jersey and of the United States.
- C. Nothing contained in this Article shall be construed to deny or restrict the Borough of its powers, rights, authorities, duties and responsibilities under R.S. 40 or any other national, state, county, or local laws ordinances.

ARTICLE III: GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

Section 1

To provide for the expeditious and mutually satisfactory settlement of grievances, it is understood by the parties that this procedure shall be the sole method for the resolution of complaints of members of the P.B.A.. The procedure shall be as follows:

Step 1. An officer with a grievance shall first discuss it orally with his supervising Sergeant or other immediate superior, either directly or through the P.B.A's designated representative, for the purpose of resolving the matter informally.

Step 2. If the aggrieved party is not satisfied with the disposition of his grievance at Step 1, or if no decision has been rendered within seven (7) working days after the presentation of the grievance at Step 1, he may file a written grievance with his supervising Sergeant or other immediate supervisor within three (3) working days after disposition at Step 1. A meeting on the written grievance shall be held within five (5) working days of the filing of the written grievance between the supervising Sergeant the aggrieved party, and the P.B.A's designated representative. A decision thereon shall be rendered in writing by the supervising Sergeant within five (5) working days after the holding of such meeting.

Step 3: If the aggrieved party is not satisfied with the disposition of his grievance at Step 2, or if no written decision has been rendered within five (5) working days after the presentation of that grievance at Step 2, the matter may be referred by the P.B.A or the aggrieved party by a submission, in writing, to the Chief of Police within five (5) working days of its disposition at Step 2. The written submission shall

incorporate all documentation relating to the grievance introduced at Steps 1 and 2. A meeting on the grievance shall be held between the grievant and the Chief of Police within seven (7) working days of the referral of the written grievance to the Chief of Police, at which a representative of the P.B.A must be present. Said meeting shall not be public unless the parties so agree in writing. The Chief of Police shall render a final written decision within seven (7) working days of the date of the meeting.

Step 4. If the aggrieved party is not satisfied with the disposition of this grievance at Step 3, or if no written decision has been rendered within seven (7) working days after the presentation of the grievance at Step 3, the matter may be referred by the P.B.A., by its designated representative, to the Mayor and Council, or their designated representatives within five (5) working days of its disposition at Step 3. Such referral shall be in writing and shall incorporate all documentation pertaining to the grievance introduced at Steps 1, 2, and 3. The written submission shall be made to the Borough Clerk. A meeting on the grievance shall be held between the P.B.A. and the Mayor and Council, or their designated representatives, within fifteen (15) days of submission of the grievance to the Borough Clerk, at which meeting the parties may be represented. Said meeting shall not be public unless the parties so agree in writing. The Mayor and Council shall render a written decision within fifteen (15) days of the date of the meeting.

Step 5. - Arbitration.

(a) If the Grievance is not settled through Step 4 and the grievance alleges a violation of this Agreement, either party may refer the matter to the New Jersey Public Employment Relations Commission for appointment of an arbitrator within fourteen (14) days after the determination by the Mayor and Council.

Grievances filed on or before December 31, 2003 are subject to advisory arbitration whereas grievances filed on or after January 1, 2004 are subject to binding arbitration. An arbitrator shall be selected pursuant to the Rules of the New Jersey Public Employment Relations Commission.

- (b) However, no arbitration hearing shall be scheduled sooner than thirty (30) days after the final decision of the Mayor and Council. In the event the aggrieved elects to pursue his appellate rights in accordance with N.J.S.A. 40A:14-150, the arbitration hearing shall be canceled and the matter withdrawn from arbitration.
- (c) The arbitrator shall be bound by the provisions of this Agreement and restricted to the application of the facts presented to him involved in the grievance. The arbitrator shall not have the authority to add to, modify, detract from or alter, in any way, the provisions of this Agreement or any amendment or supplement thereto. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding upon the parties, effective as of January 1, 2004, on a prospective basis only.
- (d) The costs for services of the arbitrator shall be borne equally by the Borough and the Association. Any other expenses, including, but not limited to, the presentation of witnesses, shall be paid by the party incurring same.
- Section 2. The time limits specified in the grievance procedure shall be construed as maximum. However, these may be extended upon mutual agreement between the parties. "Working Days" shall be defined with respect to the schedule of the party called upon to act.
- Section 3. A grievance must be presented at Step 1, one week from the date of occurrence of the facts which gave rise to the grievance. If it is not presented within

the aforementioned time period, it shall not be thereafter considered a grievance under this Agreement.

Section 4. Any employee may be represented at all stages of the grievance procedure by himself or, at his option, by a representative selected by him or approved by the P.B.A. When any employee is not represented by the P.B.A, the P.B.A. shall have the right to have a representative present and state its views at all stages of the grievance procedure.

ARTICLE IV: SALARIES

A. Salaries shall be adjusted in accordance with the salary guide which is attached hereto as Schedule A. The salary guide reflects the adjustments of increments, steps and other adjustments as agreed by the parties. The percentage wage increase for all employees covered by this Agreement will be as follows:

2.0%
2.0%
2.0%
2.0%
2.5%
2.5%
2.5%
2.5%

The salary guide also reflects certain lump sum adjustments in the amounts and on the dates as follows:

Effective April 1, 2003	\$1,200.00
Effective January 1, 2004	\$400.00
Effective January 1, 2005	\$400.00
Effective January 1, 2006	\$400.00

- B. Corporals shall receive an annual additional salary of \$1,500.00 for performing shift supervisor duties, which shall be included with and be a part of the base rate of compensation for all purposes.
- C. Members of the Community Service Bureau shall receive an annual additional salary of \$2,000.00 for performing such duties which shall be included with and be a part of the base rate of compensation for all purposes.

ARTICLE V: LONGEVITY

Section 1. Only those officers covered by the Agreement who were hired prior to January, 1998 shall be entitled to and paid longevity payments and adjustments as follows:

Upon completion of four (4) years of service and thereafter.....2% of base pay.

Upon completion of eight (8) years of service and thereafter....4% of base pay.

Upon completion of twelve (12) years of service and thereafter...6% of base pay.

Upon completion of sixteen (16) years of service and thereafter...8% of base pay.

Upon completion of twenty (20) years of service and thereafter...10% of base pay.

Section 2. Notwithstanding the provisions of the foregoing Section1, no employee shall be entitled to receive longevity payment in excess of \$2,400.00

Section 3. Effective with the anniversary date occurring during each calendar year, any employee whose eligibility date is prior to July 1 shall receive longevity from January 1 of that year. Those whose anniversary dates fall on or after July 1 shall receive longevity pay form July 1 of that year.

ARTICLE VI: WORK SCHEDULE, HOURS OF WORK, COURT TIME AND OVERTIME

- A. Patrol Division employees shall work four (4) consecutive days on duty, twelve (12) hours each in duration, followed by four (4) consecutive days off duty. All other employees shall work schedules of times and duration in accordance with pre-existing practices.
- B. It is expressly agreed that the 4 4 work schedule for Patrol Division employees set forth in Paragraph A above may be retracted by the Borough and be replaced by the work schedule that was in effect immediately prior to its implementation, should the Borough determine that the manpower needs of the Police Department, by reason of lay off or attrition only, fall below the levels necessary to operate the 4 4 schedule. If the Borough intends to retract and replace the 4 4 schedule as aforesaid, it shall provide the P.B.A. with sixty (60) days notice of such intent together with written reasons for the intended action. If the P.B.A. has any concerns or doubts regarding the Borough's contentions concerning its ability to maintain the current schedule, nothing stated herein shall be deemed to constitute a waiver by the P.B.A. of its rights to utilize whatever legal means it would otherwise have pursuant to law to raise its concerns or doubts.
- C. Any police officer who is required to appear before any Court, Grand Jury, Administrative Tribunal, Civil Court, on behalf of the Borough, County of Union, or State, for purposes of being available to give testimony regarding matters in connection with and growing out of job connected duties, will be paid at the rate of time and one-half when such appearances are required on the employee's normally scheduled off-duty time.

- D. Such payment shall be reduced by the amount of any payment the employee receives from or on behalf of the party requiring the employee's appearance and testimony in Civil Court appearance matters. The employee shall indicate the amount of any payment received from the party requiring his testimony on his voucher requesting a Civil Court payment from the Borough. A copy of the subpoena received by the employee shall also be attached to the voucher.
 - E. Except for Community Service Bureau Investigators, any employee:
 - Who is required to work beyond his normal scheduled quitting time,
 or;
 - 2. Who is required to work on his normally scheduled day off, or;
 - 3. Who is required to report to work after completion of his regular shift and prior to the start of his next regularly scheduled shift, shall be paid at the rate of time an one-half for all hours worked that are not included in the employee's normally scheduled shifts. Payment at the rate of time and one-half shall not apply to any such hours voluntarily worked by the employee for the benefit of another employee or for their mutual benefit.
 - F. Community Service Bureau Investigators shall be paid overtime as follows:
 - 1. Any Community Service Bureau Investigator called into work to perform non-detective or non-juvenile duties shall be compensated at the rate of time and one-half (1½) his regular hourly rate of pay. Said compensation may be in either compensatory time off or in money at the individual officer's discretion.

- 2. Any Community Service Bureau Investigator required to appear in Court, before a Grand Jury, called into work early or held beyond his regular shift shall be compensated at the rate of time and one-half (1½) his regular hourly rate of pay. Said compensation shall be in compensatory time off only, which shall then comply with F.L.S.A regulations.
- G. Any employee who is ordered into work, including all Court and Grand Jury appearances, during the employee's regularly scheduled day or time off, shall receive a minimum of two (2) hours call-in pay or the actual hours spent, whichever is greater, regardless of the actual time spent. Said call-in shall not apply to time which may run contiguous with either commencement or conclusion of the employee's regular work shift. Said pay shall be in accordance with the overtime provisions as set forth hereinabove. The employee shall be free to leave once the specific purpose for which the recall took place is completed.
- H. Due to the number of hours worked on the 4 4 work schedule, each patrol officer shall receive an additional one hundred and forty four (144) hours of compensatory time off per year. This shall be called schedule adjustment compensatory time and shall be administered in the same manner as all other compensatory time off. Said time shall be accrued at the rate of twelve (12) hours per month, commencing in January and running through December of each year. Each employee working the 4 4 schedule shall receive the twelve (12) hours per month on the first day of each respective month.

Any employee who is required to perform the duties of a Corporal or Sergeant for more than fifteen (15) accumulative days in any calendar year(a "day" is defined as

eight (8) hours), shall be compensated at the Sergeant's base rate of pay for all time worked in such capacity beyond the fifteen (15) days in that calendar year.

- J. Administration of Compensatory Time and FLSA Time
- 1. "Banked" accumulated time shall be limited to 440 hours. All additional time earned shall be utilized as time off in accordance with this Agreement during the year in which earned.
- 2. Upon retirement, all accumulated time shall be utilized as time off in terminal leave.
- 3. Up to 22 hours of compensatory time shall be utilized each year as training time. The scheduling and utilization of such time shall be reasonably established by the Chief in blocks of not less than 4 hours each. However, the Chief shall make a reasonable effort to schedule such time in blocks of 6 or 8 hours each. Officers attending required or mandated training on their scheduled days off shall be paid in compensatory time at the rate of time and one-half for all hours of training in excess of the 22 hours provided for in this section.
- 4. Officers attending approved elective training on their days off shall be paid in compensatory time at the rate of straight time with a maximum of 32 hours per year. Elective training shall not include attendance at undergraduate or graduate courses given by a college or university.
- K. Police instructors shall be paid at the rate of time and one-half in compensatory time for teaching on their scheduled days off, or for teaching performed before or after their regularly scheduled shift.

ARTICLE VII: SICK LEAVE

A. Service Credit for Sick Leave

- 1. All employees shall be entitled to sick leave with pay based on their aggregate years of service.
- 2. Sick leave may be utilized by employees when they are unable to perform their work by reason of bona fide personal illness, accident or exposure to contagious disease.

B. Amount of Sick Leave

- 1. Sick leave with pay shall accrue to any full time employee on the basis of one (1) working day (that is, a period of eight (8) hours) per month during the first calendar year of employment after initial appointment and fifteen (15) working days in every calendar year thereafter.
- 2. Any amount of sick leave allowance not used in any calendar year shall accumulate to the employee's credit from year to year to be used if and when needed for such purposes.
- 3. Effective January 1, 2003, there shall be a one-time addition to the sick leave bank in the amount of ten (10) days for those current employees who had accumulated at least one hundred forty five (145) days of unused sick leave as of January 1, 2003 and a pro-rata reduction in those ten (10) days for current employees whose accumulated sick leave days as of January 1, 2003 were less than one hundred forty five (145) days. Attached hereto has Schedule B is the distribution list of the proportioned sick leave.

C. Reporting of Absence on Sick Leave

1. If an employee is absent for reasons that entitle him to sick leave, his

supervisor shall be notified promptly as of the employee's usual reporting time, except in those work situations where notices must be made prior to the employees starting time. In such event, the employee shall notify the Shift Supervisor at least one-half (½) hour prior to the commencement of his usual starting time.

D. Verification of Sick Leave

- 1. An employee who shall be absent on sick leave for five (5) or more consecutive working days shall be required to submit acceptable medical evidence substantiating the illness.
- (a) An employee who has been absent on sick leave for periods totaling ten (10) days in one calendar year, consisting of periods of less than five (5) days, shall submit acceptable medical evidence for any additional sick leave in that year.
- (b) In addition, the appointing authority may require proof of illness of any employee on sick leave whenever such requirement appears reasonable.

 Abuse of sick leave shall be cause for disciplinary action;
- 2. In case of leave of absence due to exposure to contagious disease, a certificate from the Department of Health shall be required.
- 3. The Borough may require an employee who has been absent because of personal illness, as a condition of his return to duty, to be examined by a physician designated by the Borough, at the Borough's expense. Such examination shall establish whether the employee is capable of performing his normal duties and that his return will not jeopardize the health of other employees.

E. <u>Job-connected Illness or Injury</u>

1. Any employee who sustains job connected illness or injury, shall be

maintained at full pay, less any weekly workman's compensation benefits he may receive, until such time as the employee shall either return to work, apply for and/or receive pension, and/or be certified by the employer's physician as able to return to work. There shall be no deductions made from the employee's sick leave benefits during this period.

2. It is understood that the employer shall have the right to require such employee to report to a physician of the employer's choosing for examination to determine the employee's fitness for return to duty.

F. Exhaustion of Sick Leave.

Effective January 1, 2004 the Employer will institute a program of donated sick leave using the plan in existence for Union County as a model for this new program, except for the family portion of the policy, which is not applicable to the Borough of New Providence. A copy of the Union County Plan is annexed hereto as Schedule C.

ARTICLE VIII: TERMINAL LEAVE

The parties agree to a terminal leave program which will provide a maximum benefit value of \$12,000 in calendar year 2003, \$13,000 in calendar year 2004, \$14,000 in calendar year 2005 and \$15,000 in calendar year 2006. Entitlement to the maximum terminal leave or any part thereof shall be based upon the number of accumulated unused sick days at the time of retirement. Employees with 100 or fewer accumulated sick leave days at the time of retirement shall be entitled to paid terminal leave based upon those unused sick days at the ratio of 1 for 4 days to the maximum dollar amount set forth above. For those employees with more than 100 accumulated and unused sick days at the time of retirement, the ratio shall be paid terminal leave based on 1 day for 3 days of unused sick leave. Employees must retire under PFRS to be eligible for terminal leave payment, and eligible employees will remain on the payroll until their terminal leave entitlement is paid. If the payout of terminal leave results in an employee being on the payroll in a new calendar year, there shall be no entitlement to any additional paid time off for items such as vacation, personal days, sick days, holidays and the like as a result of remaining on the payroll into a new calendar year.

ARTICLE IX: DISCRIMINATION OR COERCION

There shall be no discrimination, interference or coercion by the employer or any of its agents against the employees represented by the P.B.A. because of membership or activity in the P.B.A. The P.B.A. or any of its agents shall not intimidate or coerce employees into membership. Neither the employer nor the P.B.A shall discriminate against any employee because of race, creed, color, age, sex or national origin.

ARTICLE X: SEPARABILITY & SAVINGS

- A. In the event that any federal or state legislation, government regulation or court decision causes invalidation of any article or section of this Agreement, all other articles and sections not so invalidated shall remain in full force and effect.
- B. Except as may be otherwise provided for within this Agreement, the failure to enforce any provision of this Agreement or otherwise exercise one's rights pursuant thereto shall not be deemed as a waiver thereof.

ARTICLE XI: OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT

If any person, organization or agency desires the services of a police officer during his off duty hours, and the performance of such services are approved in advance by the appropriate Borough official, the police officer shall be paid through the Borough with appropriate deductions for taxes made therefrom, it being understood that such payment shall be remitted by said person, organization or agency directly to the Borough on behalf of the officer. It is further understood that such compensation received by the police officer shall not be considered as salary or wages from the Borough and shall not affect the police officer pension entitlement. Any police officer who engaged in other off duty activities for compensation which are not approved by the Borough as aforesaid, shall not be eligible or entitled to receive payment in this manner.

ARTICLE XII: PERSONAL LEAVE TIME

Each current member shall be entitled to five (5) personal leave days (that is, 5 periods of eight (8) hours) per year. Those persons hired subsequent to December 31, 1997shall be entitled to three (3) personal leave days (that is, 3 periods of 8 hours) per year. In the event a member shall have unused personal leave days from the previous calendar year, he shall be entitled to add them to his vacation in the succeeding calendar year.

ARTICLE XIII: INSURANCE

- A. The Borough agrees to provide and pay for the premium Blue Crossand Major Medical, including surgical insurance, which shall include the following:
 - Unlimited lifetime maximum benefit, a \$200.00 calendar year deductible per person, \$400.00 family maximum deductible and an 80% co-insurance benefit for the first \$3,000.00 eligible expense incurred and 100% benefit of the excess in a given calendar year. The Borough agrees to provide the aforementioned insurance benefits to all eligible officers and their eligible dependants.
 - 2. A family dental plan, as originally implemented by the Borough in 1988, with the consent of the P.B.A.. Effective in 2000, the dental insurance shall be increased to a maximum coverage of \$1,000.00 per person per year and shall include orthodontics.
 - For employees only, one hundred dollars (\$100.00) per year towards eye exams, lenses, frames or contact lenses, with a receipt.
 - The health insurance provided hereunder shall include provision for Pre-Admission Certification/Continued Stay Review and Mandatory Second Opinion.
- B. The Borough reserves the right to change insurance carriers so long as substantially similar benefits are provided, subject to review by the P.B.A..
- C. Employees hired on or after January 1, 2000 will have the option of either "point of service" or "HMO" medical benefits only.
- D. Employees hired before January 1, 2000 will continue to have the option of "traditional," "point of service" or "HMO" Medical benefits. The traditional plan will

continue as "unlimited lifetime" benefit.

- E. The Borough agrees to implement a Disability Insurance Policy for all employees which will provide (I) two-thirds income continuation benefits for up to one year; (ii) with a maximum monthly benefit of \$5,000.00 and (iii) which will take effect after 120 eight-hour days of disability, and other details as outlined in the Plan. Effective as of January 1, 2004, the Disability Insurance Plan will be eliminated.
- F. Notwithstanding anything contained in the foregoing paragraphs to the contrary, effective January 1, 2004 all employees in the negotiating unit will have the option of health insurance coverage under the Point of Service Plan (POS) provided by the carrier or of selecting coverage under the Preferred Provider Organization (PPO) or Traditional Plans provided by the carrier on condition that employees pay the difference between the cost of the POS Plan and the PPO or Traditional Plans as may be selected. The Borough will establish a Section 125 Plan to enable employees to elect coverage under the PPO or Traditional Options to pay the premium differences with pre-tax dollars. The Borough shall also establish an opt out program with the benefit of 50% of the cost of POS coverage for employees who opt out of any health insurance coverage offered by the Borough. The parties also agree that effective January 1, 2004 the disability insurance plan shall be eliminated.

ARTICLE XIV: NO-STRIKE PLEDGE

- A. The P.B.A. covenants and agrees that during the term of this Agreement neither the P.B.A. nor any person acting in its behalf will cause, authorize, or support, nor will any of its members take part in any strike (i.e., the concerted failure to report for duty or willful absence of any employee from his position or stoppage of work or abstinence, in whole or in part, from the full, faithful, and proper performance of the employee's duties of employment), work stoppage, slowdown, sick-out, or walk-out, against the Borough. The P.B.A agrees that such action would constitute a material breach of this Agreement.
- B. In the event of a strike, slowdown, work stoppage, sick-out, or walk-out, it is covenanted and agreed that participation in any such activities by any employee covered under the terms of this Agreement may be deemed grounds for disciplinary action of such employee or employees. All employees who continue full performance of their duties during such strike, slowdown, work stoppage, sick out, or walk-out shall receive full pay and all benefits provided in this Agreement.
- C. The P.B.A. will actively discourage any strike, slowdown, work stoppage, sick-out, or walk-out and, consistent with the rights of its members, issue a statement, in writing, describing such strike, slowdown, work stoppage, sick-out, or walk-out as illegal and invalid.
- D. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to limit or restrict the Borough in its right to seek and obtain such judicial relief as it may be entitled to have in law or in equity for injunction or damages or both in the event of such breach by the P.B.A. or its members.

ARTICLE XV: DISCIPLINARY ACTION

- A. Disputes involving the discipline of employees covered by this Agreement shall be governed by the appeal procedures set forth in applicable statutes, regulations and ordinances such as N.J.S.A. 40A:14-147 et seq..
- B. Failure to qualify with sidearms may result in disciplinary action. The Borough shall provide an in-service training program for firearms proficiency.
- C. Disputes involving minor disciplinary matters not governed by the appeal procedures referred to in paragraph A above will be subject to the grievance procedure set forth in Article III of this Agreement.

ARTICLE XVI: RETENTION OF BENEFITS

Except as otherwise provided herein, all rights, privileges, and benefits which the officers are presently enjoying shall be maintained and continued by the Employer during the term of this Agreement.

ARTICLE XVII: POLICE EQUIPMENT

- A. It shall be the responsibility of each police officer to immediately report any defective vehicles to his immediate supervisor.
- B. Each police officer shall utilize reasonable care and be fully responsible for equipment assigned to him.

ARTICLE XVIII: FULLY-BARGAINED PROVISIONS

- A. During the course of collective negotiations, each party has been free to propose and negotiate with regard to all appropriate subjects which it might have desired to place before the other for consideration. This Agreement incorporates all rights and obligations assumed by each party and granted through its terms by each to the other as a result of the negotiating process, and it is specifically recognized that since both parties hereto are desirous of stabilizing their relationship by an executed document for a specific duration, for that duration, neither side shall be obligated to enter into further negotiations regarding any matter not specifically designated by clear and express language within this Agreement.
- B. This Agreement represents and incorporates the complete and final understanding and settlement by the parties on all bargainable issues which were or could have been the subject of negotiations. During the term of this Agreement, neither party will be required to negotiate with respect to any such matter, whether or not covered by this Agreement and whether or not within the knowledge of contemplation of either or both of the parties at the time they negotiated or signed this Agreement, except as may be otherwise determined by the Public Employment Relations Commission.

ARTICLE XIX: VACATIONS

- A. Police officers shall accumulate the following vacation days (that is, periods of 8 hours) in accordance with the following schedule:
 - Less than ten (10) months continuous service before July 1, one
 (1) day of paid vacation for each full month of employment prior to July 1.
 - 2. At least ten (10) months but less than five (5) years continuous service by July 1, two (2) weeks plus one (1) day of vacation (88 hours).
 - 3. At least five (5) years but less than ten (10) years continuous service by July 1, two (2) weeks plus two (2) days of vacation (96 hours).
 - 4. At least ten (10) years but less than fifteen (15) years of continuous service, three (3) weeks plus one (1) day of vacation (128 hours).
 - 5. At least fifteen (15) years but less than twenty (20) years continuous service by July 1, three (3) weeks plus four (4) days of vacation (152 hours).
 - 6. Twenty (20) years or more of continuous service, four (4) weeks plus four (4) days of vacation (192 hours).
- B. The vacation year, for purposes of determining eligibility and amount of vacation, is from July 1 to June 30.
- C. Vacations will normally be taken in full weeks, subject to a schedule approved by the Chief.
 - D. No vacation time shall be accumulated from year to year, except where an

employee loses his vacation time by reason of being required to work during said period. In such cases, said employee shall be granted the unused vacation time at a subsequent period, or equivalent payment or compensation shall be made upon certification of the appropriate department head and approval of the Borough Council.

E. Seniority shall be determined within squads to which members are assigned, first by rank, and then by length of service within the department.

ARTICLE XX: PROVISIONS FOR REPRESENTATION FEE IN LIEU OF DUES FROM NON-MEMBERS OF THE P.B.A

- A. Any permanent employee in the bargaining unit on the effective date of this Agreement who does not join in the Union within thirty (30) days of initial employment within the unit and any permanent employee previously employed within the unit who does not join within ten (10) days of re-entry into employment within the unit, shall pay a Representation Fee to the Union by automatic payroll deduction. The Representation Fee shall be in an amount equal to eighty-five percent (85%) of the regular Union Membership dues, fees, and assessments as certified to the employer by the Union. The Union may revise its certification of the amount of the Representation Fee at any time to reflect changes in the regular Union membership dues, fees and assessments. The Union entitlement to the Representation Fee shall continue beyond the termination date of this Agreement so long as the Union remains the majority representative of the employees in the unit, provided that no modification is made in this provision by a successor Agreement between the Union and the Employer.
- B. The Union agrees that it will indemnify and save harmless the Borough against any and all actions, claims, demands, losses or expenses (including reasonable attorney's fees) in any matter resulting from action taken by the Borough at the request of the Union under this Article.
- C. In the event that an employee, otherwise eligible for membership in the bargaining unit, is, for any reason, denied, said membership by the bargaining unit, said employee shall not be subject to the payment of the Representation Fee provided for herein.

ARTICLE XXI: MARTIN LUTHER KING, JR., HOLIDAY

Employees shall be entitled to a holiday to celebrate the birthday of Martin Luther King, Jr., but only if such additional holiday is granted by the Borough to other employees outside employees outside this bargaining unit.

ARTICLE XXII: EDUCATIONAL ASSISTANCE

In the event a permanent employee desires to improve his skills through further education, the Borough will reimburse such employee in accordance with its established educational assistance policy. That policy, adopted by the Borough pursuant to Resolution 79-12, amended, is hereby incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein.

ARTICLE XXIII: SENIORITY

Seniority for police officers shall be determined by length of service in a rank and then length of service in the Department. In the event it becomes necessary to reduce the number of employees, lay-off shall be by seniority with the least senior member being first laid off. Recall from lay-off shall be in inverse order, and the Municipality shall not hire any additional employees while there are permanent members on lay-off status and eligible for recall.

Employees' rights for recall shall be two (2) years from date of lay-off and shall be forfeited if recall to work is refused, and/or the employee fails to advise the Municipality of his latest address to which such notification, by certified or regular mail, would be sent.

ARTICLE XXIV: DURATION

The term of this Agreement shall be from January 1, 2003 through December 31, 2006, and from year to year subject to written notice from either party to the other of the desire to change or amend this Agreement. To be effective, such written notice must be received by the other party by no later than August 30 of the last year of this Agreement (or of any renewal year). If timely written notice is given, successor negotiations shall commence no later than September 13 of the year in question. The foregoing notification and commencement dates are derived from Public Employment Relations Commission Regulation Section 19:16-2.1 and the adoption by the Public Employment Relations Commission of February 10th required budget submission date for municipalities such as the Borough. In the event of any change in the PERC statute or regulations, this Article shall be deemed to have been amended to conform to such change.

ATTEST:	BOROUGH OF NEW PROVIDENCE
	By: Allen Morgan, Mayor
	NEW JERSEY STATE P.B.A. NEW PROVIDENCE LOCAL #132
ATTEST:	NEW PROVIDENCE LOCAL #132
	By:
	, PBA President

Borough of N	Borough of New Providence			
Sick Leave Acc	Sick Leave Accumulation as of January 1, 2003	ary 1, 2003		
	Accumulated	Percent of	Bonus hours	Accimilated
	hours	1160	80	houre
NAME	as of 1/1/03	hours	Maximum	as of 1/1/03
BLEICH	723.0 <	62.33%	49.9	9 2 2 7 7
BOTTE	1022.0 ~	88.10%	70.5	1092.5
CARROLL	1160.0 /	100.00%	80.0	1240.0
CAROVILLANO	544.0	46.90%	37.5	581.5
DREISSIG	871.0 ~	75.09%	60.1	931.1
DROWN	16.0 ✓	1.38%	1.1	17.1
GARRISON	320.0 /	27.59%	22.1	342.1
GAFFNEY	772.0 ~	66.55%	53.2	825.2
GAZAWAY	245.5 /	21.16%	16.9	262.4
GUERRIERO	348.0 ~	30.00%	24.0	372.0
HENN	₹04.0 €	34.83%	27.9	431.9
KENNEDY	760.5	65.56%	52.4	812.9
KNOWLES	416.0 ~	35.86%	28.7	444.7
ABASKA	554.5	47.80%	38.2	592.7
MAURER	260.0	48.28%	38.6	598.6
NOBBS	913.0 ~	78.71%	63.0	976.0
NOZZA	154.0	13.28%	10.6	164.6
OPALEWSKI	404.0	34.83%	27.9	431.9
SPRAGUE	1160.0 /	100.00%	80.0	1240.0
VENTRE	1160.0	100.00%	80.0	1240.0
WILSON	298.0 ~	25.69%	20.6	318.6

SCHEDULEA

1 1 1

Steps	1/1/03	4/1/03	7/1/03	1/1/04	7/1/04	1/1/05	7/1/05	1/1/06	7/1/06
_	65,482	66,682	68,016	70,855	72,272	74,479	76,341	78,650	80,616
2	62,867	64,067	65,348	68,134	69,497	71,634	73,425	75,661	77,552
3	57,919	59,119	60,301	62,986	64,246	66,252	67,908	900'02	71,756
4	54,149	55,349	56,456	59,064	60,245	62,151	63,705	65,698	67,340
22	50,379	51,579	52,610	55,142	56,244	58,051	59,502	61,389	62,924
9	46,609	47,809	48,765	51,219	52,244	53,950	55,299	57,081	58,508
7	42,838	44,038	44,919	47,296	48,242	49,848	51,094	52,771	54,091
80	39,068	40,268	41,073	43,374	44,241	45,747	46,891	48,463	49,675